
CITY OF LANGFORD 

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

Tuesday, September 8th, 2020 @ 5:30 p.m. 

Due to COVID-19 Council Chambers is Closed 

Dial In:  1-855-703-8985 (Canada Toll Free) or 1-778-907-2071  Conference ID:  820 8789 1302 

To Participate:  During the public participation period, press *9 to "raise your hand".  

Participants will be unmuted one by one when it is their turn to speak. 

We may experience a delay in opening the meeting due to technical difficulties. In the event that 

the meeting does not start as scheduled please be patient and stay on the line, we will get started 

as quickly as possible.  Public Dial-In Details are also posted at www.langford.ca  

 

    
 
AGENDA  

Page 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
 
3. ADOPTION OF COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

a) Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – August 17, 2020   3 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
5. NOTICE OF INTENT 
 

a) TUP20-0003 – 890 Goldstream Ave         15 
 
6. REPORTS 
 

a) Disposition of the North Langford Recreation Centre  17 
- Staff Report (Administration) 

 
b) Approval to Award design of Millstream Road Roundabout  21    112 

- Staff Report (Engineering) 

7. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

a) Goldstream Farmers Market Society       115 
RE: Extension of Contract to November 2022 

 

8. BYLAWS 
 

Page 1 of 134

http://www.langford.ca/


a) BYLAW NO. 1884 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 582, (2716 and 2720 Strathmore                  116 

Road), Bylaw 1884, 2020". 

(ADOPTION) 

 

b) BYLAW NO. 1904 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 589, Omnibus No. 51 – City Centre 1                 123 

Zones, Bylaw No. 1904, 2020". 

(ADOPTION) 

 

c) BYLAW NO. 1920 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 597, (Omnibus No. 53–Various                  127 

Amendments), Bylaw No. 1920, 2020". 

(ADOPTION) 

 

d) BYLAW NO. 1925 

"City of Langford Freedom of Information Bylaw No. 1925, 2020.                  130 

(FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS) 

9. IN-CAMERA RESOLUTION 
 

THAT Council close the meeting to the public pursuant to section 90 (1) c and k of the 
Community Charter to consider: 

 labour relations or other employee relations; 

 negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision of a municipal service 
that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the view of the council, could reasonably be 
expected to harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public. 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 134



CITY OF LANGFORD 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

Monday, August 17th, 2020 @ 5:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers Closed due to COVID-19 

Meeting by Teleconference 

    
 
*The City advertised its intention to dispose of lands at 1000 Gade Road and indicated that the matter 
would be discussed at the August 17, 2020 Council meeting; however, as the agreement has not been 
finalized, this item will be postponed and the City will advertise the date of the meeting at which it 
will be considered.  
 

PRESENT 
 
Acting Mayor M. Sahlstrom; Councillors: D. Blackwell, L. Seaton, N. Stewart, L. Szpak and R. Wade. 
 
 ATTENDING 
 
Director of Corporate Services, B. Hutchins; Director of Engineering, M. Mahovlich; Director of Planning and 
Subdivision, M. Baldwin; Director of Finance, M. Dillabaugh; Manager of Legislative Services, M. Watmough; 
and Manager of IT, K. Dube. 
 
 ABSENT 
 
Mayor S. Young, and Chief Administrative Officer, D. Kiedyk. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Acting Mayor Sahlstrom called the meeting to order at 5:31 pm. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
 
MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR SEATON 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council approve the agenda as presented. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
3. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a) BYLAW NO. 1904 
“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 589, (Omnibus No. 51 – City Centre 1 Zone),  
Bylaw No. 1904,  
2020". 
 

Page 3 of 134Page 3 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 2 of 12 
 
The Acting Mayor opened the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1904 at 5:31 pm, and read a statement to inform 

those present of the public hearing procedure. 

Director of Planning Matthew Baldwin advised that the following Omnibus No.51 contemplates amending 
the text of the Zoning Bylaw to add a new downtown zone. The new CC1, City Centre 1, Zone will be applied 
to properties that are outside of the core Goldstream Avenue area, or main thoroughfares such as Peatt or 
Jacklin Road.  
 
This is being proposed in order to create a zone with regulations special to the downtown that will support 
the recent changes made to Langford’s Design Guidelines for the Downtown 
 
As part of this application, a public hearing is required in accordance with the regulations of the Local 
Government Act.   
 
Notifications and advertisements have been placed as required by the Local Government Act. 
 
The Acting Mayor called a first time for presentations. 

None presented. 

Acting Mayor Sahlstrom called a second time for presentations.  

Resident on Hockley Ave– Called to express support for the Bylaw. Stated that their concerns had been 

addressed and they are in support 

Acting Mayor Sahlstrom called a third and final time for speakers.  There being none, he declared the 

Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1904 closed at 5:42 p.m. 

b) BYLAW NO. 1920 
“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 597, (Omnibus No. 53–Various  
Amendments), Bylaw No. 1920, 2020". 

 
The Acting Mayor opened the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1920 at 5:42 pm, and read a statement to inform 

those present of the public hearing procedure. 

Director of Planning Matthew Baldwin advised that Bylaw No. 1920 proposes the following broad changes 
to Zoning Bylaw No. 300:  
 

• the removal of flex suites from the C9 Zone; 

• amending density bonus provisions of the CD20 Zone to split the base density and amenity 
contributions between the two separate development sites; 

• inserting minimum lot size exemptions for boundary adjustment subdivisions and transportation 
corridor uses; and  

• amending Schedule E of the CD1 Zone. 
 

Notifications and advertisements have been placed as required by the Local Government Act. 
 

Page 4 of 134Page 4 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 3 of 12 
 
The Acting Mayor called a first time for presentations. 

None presented. 

Acting Mayor Sahlstrom called a second time for presentations.   

None presented. 

Acting Mayor Sahlstrom called a third and final time for speakers.  There being none, he declared the 

Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1920 closed at 5:44 p.m. 

4. ADOPTION OF COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

a) Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council – July 20, 2020  
 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR SEATON 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
 

That Council approve the minutes of the special meetings of Council held on July 20, 2020. 
 

CARRIED. 
 

5. OTHER BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

a) Minutes of the West Shore Parks and Recreation Board of Directors Meeting–  
June 18, 2020 

 
MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR WADE 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR SATON 
 

That Council receive the minutes of the West Shore Parks and Recreation Board of Directors 
Meeting held on June 18, 2020. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
6. COMMITTEE RESOLUTIONS 
 

a) Parks, Recreation, Culture and Beautification Committee – July 23, 2020 
1. Minutes of the Parks, Recreation, Culture and Beautification Committee  

Meeting – July 23, 2020 
 
MOVED BY:   COUNCILLOR SEATON 
SECONDED:   COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
 

That Council receive the minutes of the Parks, Recreation, Culture and Beautification Committee 
held on July 23, 2020. 

 
CARRIED. 

Page 5 of 134Page 5 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 4 of 12 
 

2. Naming of the New Park on Azurite Crescent 
 

MOVED BY:   COUNCILLOR SEATON 
SECONDED:   COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council name the new park on Azurite Crescent “Southpoint Park”. 

CARRIED. 
 

b) Protective Services Committee – July 28, 2020 
1. Minutes of the Protective Services Committee Meeting – July 28, 2020 

 
MOVED BY:   COUNCILLOR SZPAK 
SECONDED:   COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
 

That Council receive the minutes of the Protective Services Committee held on July 28, 2020. 
 

CARRIED. 
 

2. Approval to Develop a Bylaw Notice Adjudication System 
 

MOVED BY:   COUNCILLOR SZPAK 
SECONDED:   COUNCILLOR STEWART 
 

That Council direct Staff to formally request the Ministry of Attorney General to enact a regulation to 
make the Local Government Bylaw Notice Enforcement Act applicable to the City of Langford; and, 
 
That Council direct Staff to prepare a Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw, Screening Officer Policy, and 

amendments to existing bylaws as necessary to implement a bylaw adjudication system. 

 
CARRIED. 

 
3. Evacuation Route Plan and Hazard, Risk, Vulnerabilities Assessment 

 
MOVED BY:   COUNCILLOR SZPAK 
SECONDED:   COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council receive the report for information only. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Resident on Spencer Rd - Letter was sent to council from the Tri-way residents’ legal counsel. Need to allow 
residents a satisfactory outcome, everyone is housed, everybody treated the same. 
 

Page 6 of 134Page 6 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 5 of 12 
 
2nd Resident on Spencer Rd - Referenced letter from J. Hartshorne. Said Mr. Hartshorne had received a number 
of concerns about differing information from representatives. These representatives are our duly elected reps. 
We stand together. Once we elect our representatives it is not up to the developer to question our choice. 
There has been no direct information from Tri-Way other than a short meeting with the public relations 
manager. In 6 months, no one has gotten back. They were supposed to talk one on one at the beginning. It is 
too early to rezone the park 
 
3rd Resident Spencer Rd - Redevelopment of the park will happen. I believe in general people are more than 
willing to cooperate. Understand our position, protections have been eliminated or ignored; assurances were 
changed or disappeared. In the Mayor’s May 2019 letter residents were assured that there would be a 
comprehensive compensation plan in place before rezoning. People relied on these statements. 
In February 2020 it was stated that the covenant would apply only until residents and council approve a 
comprehensive plan of compensation. The Draft covenant does not give the participation or protection. The 
draft covenant sets out the compensation and then says this is accepted to be a comprehensive compensation 
plan.  This is different from the January presentation; changes raise red flags. This is without council being 
included and residents being part of it. Need to find a way that commitments are honoured. Require a detailed 
plan like the one in January 2020 that includes more detail, things such as when would compensation be paid; 
which year of assessed value would be used. Need details to relieve anxiety. 
 
Jim Hartshorne, Developer - Current owners have held the property since 1940, the mobile home park has 
been there since its inception in 1958; 80% of the trailers are over 45 years old. In addition, the septic need 
replacing. Total servicing needs in the park are in the millions. CRD housing – priority placements Tri-Way park 
residents. 18-month construction period. Park is protected until they become the owner. The developer is not 
yet the owner so cannot make decisions about compensation at this time. Intent of the covenant is to mitigate 
concerns. This is a 50+ acre parcel, the mobile home park is 12 acres. There will be a 1000 square foot amenity 
building that will be available to the residents of the park. The park cannot be reduced to less than 40 units. 
55% of the units will be maintained in their location, 15% will be in new area. 30% of residents have indicated 
that they wish to leave, move their mobile home or go into the CRD housing, if they qualify. The owners of 
mobile homes that are staying in place will have the option of selling on the open market. This is a long-term 
multi-faceted complex development it is going to be a thorough, thoughtful and costly development. 
 
4th Resident on Spencer Rd - I am an elected representative. I have been involved for the last 7 months, we are 
liaisons between the developer and residents. Have asked for a number of clarifications, receive conflicting or 
no answers. Residents are eager to know plans and details. Were told will have say in comprehensive 
compensation, now staff says there is no say. Want to confirm that the covenant includes wording to protect. 
Draft covenant indicates the parties have already agreed 
Bring issues to table for discussion, urge council to clarify residents concerns that have been brought fwd. 
 
2nd Resident on Spencer Rd - This is short of a case of private expropriation. Compensation should be decided 
before rezoning, need to know what the parameters are. 
 
3rd Resident on Spencer Rd - Propose we come together to sit together and talk this through, we can solve this 
by face to face or zoom. 
 
Resident on White Pine Terr - The covenant is a layer of protection that is not available without the rezoning. 
Covenant provides the opportunities everyone is looking for. 
 

Page 7 of 134Page 7 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 6 of 12 
 
1st Resident on Spencer Rd - It was originally understood that anyone who wanted the buyout would get it. 
Some of the people have very old decrepit trailers that won’t move or sell. 
 
5th Resident on Spencer Rd - Moved in October 2019, just before being notified the park was up for sale. No 
one will buy a home when they don’t know what is happening. It is costing us $1400 per month to keep the 
house, can’t have someone rent or even have a caretaker live there. 
 
Jim Hartshorne, Developer - Talked about the incredible circumstances to make the project. This is a 
community; there are technical issues, the residential tenancy act and the mobile home act. There is a high 
level of frustration. Something needs to move here, we continue to pursue communication. In our situation, we 
are going broke because there is no way out of it. Unsure future we have to deal with. 
 
Resident on Carr Rd - Mom lives in Park. Understand that the developer will not buy the parcels without the 
rezoning, residents have to have compensation before rezoning, clarification on that. 
 
3rd Resident on Spencer Rd - Feel that it is disingenuous to say the developer can’t take on the compensation 
until they are the owners, have taken on the obligation to install sewer. Could put a provisional comprehensive 
plan for compensation in place prior to the rezoning. 
 
2nd Resident on Spencer Rd - Could have a hypothetical plan and map for where the 40 units would be located, 
that information would be invaluable. Put provisional rider on the zoning and I will remove my objection if that 
goes on before rezoning. 
 
Jim Hartshorne, Developer - The covenant was put in place to secure the 12 acres and each home. 
Currently over 25 units are being held in the CRD housing for people in the park. 
Most people are on a month to month agreement with the park. 
 
2nd Resident on Spencer Rd - Regarding the month to month, we pay property taxes to the City of Langford. 
 
8. NOTICE OF INTENT 
 

a) TUP20-0004 – 2981 AND 2985 Awsworth Rd 
 
MOVED BY:   COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED:   COUNCILLOR WADE 
 
That Temporary Use Permit No. TUP20-0004 be issued by the Council for the City of Langford to Niall 
Paltiel, Keycorp Consulting Ltd. Has applied on behalf of Susan Gale and Todd Edward Wilson to allow for 
the operations of a truck terminal facility at 2981 and 2985 Awsworth Rd subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 
 
1. Appendix 
 

The site shall be developed in accordance with the site plan attached (Appendix A) to the report dated 
29 June 2020. 
 
 

Page 8 of 134Page 8 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 7 of 12 
 
2. Variances 
 

The following regulations of Zoning Bylaw No. 300 are varied under Section 493 of the Local Government 
Act: 

 
a) That applicant must, prior to issuance, complete the following: 

 
I. Remove trucks from the site and cease use of a truck terminal facility until a Development Permit 

has been issued by the Director of Planning or a Business License has been issued, whichever 
is first;  

II. Remove any dirt piles left in City road right of way to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Engineering; 

III. Decommission site access from Sooke Road/Highway 14 to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Engineering. Vehicular access to the site may only occur from Awsworth Road;  

IV. Register a Section 219 covenant, registered in priority of all other charges on title, that agrees to 
the following:  

 
1) That the property shall only be used for a single-family dwelling until a Development Permit 

has been issued (or exemption if applicable) and a   Business License has been issued; and 
2) That the applicant agrees to implement and maintain any and all recommendations regarding 

proximity to the Agricultural Land Reserve as per the Edge Plan prepared by C&F Land 
Resource Consultants Ltd, dated April 17, 2020. 
 

b) That the activities relating to the Temporary Use Permit occur outside of the Agricultural Land 
Reserve designated land. 
 

c) That they be allowed to stay a week plus one day, then be required to move. 
 
3. Conditions 
 

The following requirements are imposed under Section 493 of the Local Government Act: 
 

a) That the application be authorized for three years with an expiry date of 20 July 2023. The 
application can be requested to be renewed for an additional three years. After the sixth year, a 
new application process will be required. 

 
CARRIED. 

 
9. REPORTS 

 
a) Application for a Temporary Use Permit at 890 Goldstream Avenue to allow the  

operation of an after-school computer coding programing for children. 
- Staff Report (Planning) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 
 

Page 9 of 134Page 9 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 8 of 12 
 
 
That Council proceed with the consideration of Temporary Use Permit TUP20-0003 at 890 Goldstream 
Avenue to allow a computer programing school for children for the period of three years, subject to the 
following terms and conditions: 

 
a) That addressing for the three units be clarified and revised as required to the satisfaction of the 

Fire Chief prior to issuance of a business licence; 
 

b) That the applicant will retain an Architect to supply the appropriate code analysis for the 
building change of use and to ensure code compliant fire separations and B.C. Building Code 
2018 code requirements are met for the unit prior to a business licence being issued, to the 
satisfaction of the Chief Building Inspector; 
 

c) That the Temporary Use Permit be issued only to Jesse Bowness, doing business as Code Ninjas 
Westshore and not be transferred to any subsequent business or business owner should Jesse 
Bowness, Code Ninjas Westshore cease to operate. 

 
   CARRIED. 

 
b) Variances Associated with Rezoning of 494 Goldstream Avenue from One- and  

Two-Family Residential (R2) Zone to City Centre (CC1) to Allow for a 6-Storey  
Mixed-Use Building 
- Staff Report (Planning) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 
That Council give 1st reading to Bylaw 1905 to amend the zoning designation of the property located at 494 
Goldstream Avenue from R2 (One- and Two-Family Residential) to CC1 (City Centre); and   

 
Authorize the Director of Planning to issue the following variances in the Form and Character Development 
Permit for 494 Goldstream Avenue:  

 

a. That Section 6.57.06(2)(a) be varied to reduce the minimum exterior side yard setback from 
the required 4.0m to 2.0.m.     

b. That Section 6.57.06(2)(b) be varied to reduce the minimum interior side yard setback from 
the required 3.0m to 2.0m. 

c. That Section 6.57.08(1) be varied to reduce the minimum distance of an unenclosed surface 
parking space to a lot line abutting a highway from the required 3.0m to 2.0m. 

d. That Section 6.57.08(3) be varied to reduce the minimum landscaped area between surface 
parking stalls and rear lot line from the required 3.0m to 2.0m.  

 
   CARRIED. 

 
 
 

Page 10 of 134Page 10 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 9 of 12 
 

 
c) Disposition of Portions of 2855 West Shore Parkway and 1365 Goldstream Ave 

- Staff Report (Administration) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council approve the disposition on the terms and conditions of the attached purchase and sale 
agreement with Canwest Hotels Ltd, for an approximate 1.8 ha (4.5 ac) portion of the properties 
legally described as Lot 1 Section 1 Goldstream District Plan VIP69106 and Lot 2 Section 1 
Goldstream District Plan 12263 Except Part In Plan EPP60296; AND 
 
Direct Staff to proceed with legal surveys to subdivide the lands to be purchased from the parent 

parcels, and into two ultimate lots. 

   CARRIED. 
 

10. BYLAWS 
 

a) BYLAW NO. 1847 

“City of Langford Fees and Charges, Amendment No. 13, Bylaw No. 1847, 2020”. 

(ADOPTION) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR SEATON 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council adopt Bylaw No. 1847. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

b) BYLAW NO. 1864 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 574, (Omnibus No. 52 – Residential Zone 

Combining), Bylaw No. 1864, 2020". 

(ADOPTION) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR WADE 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
 

That Council adopt Bylaw No. 1864. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

c) BYLAW NO. 1885 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 583, (1100 McCallum Rd and 2780  

Spencer Rd), Bylaw No. 1885, 2020". 

(ADOPTION) 

Page 11 of 134Page 11 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 10 of 12 
 
MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council adopt Bylaw No. 1855. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

d) BYLAW NO. 1893 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 586, (721, 749, 755, 759, 767, 769  

Meaford Ave), Bylaw No. 1893, 2020". 

(ADOPTION) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR WADE 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
 

That Council adopt Bylaw No. 1893. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

e) BYLAW NO. 1904 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 589, (Omnibus No. 51 – City Centre 1 Zone), Bylaw 

No. 1904, 2020". 

(SECOND AND THIRD READINGS) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council give Bylaw No. 1904 second and third readings. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

f) BYLAW NO. 1905 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 590, (494 Goldstream Ave),  

Bylaw No. 1905, 2020". 

(FIRST READING) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council give Bylaw No. 1905 first reading. 
 

CARRIED. 

  

Page 12 of 134Page 12 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 11 of 12 
 

g) BYLAW NO. 1913 

“City of Langford Tax Exemption Public Athletic and Library Facility Bylaw No. 1588,  

2015 Amendment No. 1, Bylaw No. 1913, 2020.” 

(FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR SZPAK 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council give Bylaw No. 1913 first, second and third readings. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

h) BYLAW NO. 1920 

“Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 597, (Omnibus No. 53– 

Various Amendments), Bylaw No. 1920, 2020". 

(SECOND AND THIRD READINGS) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council give Bylaw No. 1920 second and third readings. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

i) BYLAW NO. 1922 

“Peatt Road DCC Agreement (Project 13)”. 

(ADOPTION) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR WADE 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR STEWART 
 

That Council adopt Bylaw No. 1922. 
 

CARRIED. 

 

j) BYLAW NO. 1923 

“Highway 14 (Sooke Road) DCC Agreement (Project 24)”. 

(ADOPTION) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR SEATON 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR WADE 
 

That Council adopt Bylaw No. 1923. 
 

CARRIED. 

Page 13 of 134Page 13 of 134



Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting 
August 17th, 2020 

Page 12 of 12 
 

k) BYLAW NO. 1928 

“2020 Tax Sale Deferment Bylaw No. 1928, 2020” 

(FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS AND ADOPTION) 

MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR SZPAK 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR STEWART 
 

That Council give Bylaw No. 1928 first, second and third readings and adoption. 
 

CARRIED. 

11. IN-CAMERA RESOLUTION 
 
MOVED BY: COUNCILLOR BLACKWELL 
SECONDED: COUNCILLOR STEWART 
 

THAT Council close the meeting to the public pursuant to section 90 (1) e of the Community 
Charter to consider: 

• the acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land or improvements, if the council considers 
that disclosure could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of the municipality. 
 

CARRIED. 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Acting Mayor Sahlstrom adjourned the meeting at 7:13 pm. 

 
 
______________ _____      _________________ 
PRESIDING COUNCIL MEMBER:     CERTIFIED CORRECT 
        Corporate Officer 
 

Page 14 of 134Page 14 of 134



 

 
 

2nd  Floor · 877 Goldstream Avenue · Langford, BC Canada · V9B 2X8 
 T · 250-478-7882 F · 250-478-7864 

 
 

Notice of Intention to Consider Issuance of a 
Temporary Use Permit 

Council for the City of Langford hereby gives Notice of Intention to consider issuance of a Temporary Use 
Permit at its Regular Meeting scheduled for 5:30 pm, Tuesday, 8 September 2020, in the City Hall Council 
Chamber on the Third Floor of 877 Goldstream Avenue. 
 

File Temporary Use Permit No. TUP20-0003 

Applicant Jesse Bowness of Code Ninjas Westshore 

Location The lands that are the subject of Temporary Use Permit No. TUP20-0003 are 890 
Goldstream Avenue. 

Purpose The purpose of the proposed Temporary Use Permit is to allow an after-school computer 
coding program for children. 

 
The purpose of this Notice is to acquaint the property owners and residents in the area with the specifics 
of the proposed temporary use permit.  We request that any written submissions be submitted by 
Wednesday, 2 September 2020.  The submissions will then be distributed for Council's consideration.  You 
may also speak at the Council Meeting of date during the Public Participation Section at the beginning of 
the meeting.  PLEASE NOTE:  This meeting will be held electronically, and not in-person.  Information 
about how to connect to this meeting by phone may be found on the City’s Website:  www.langford.ca 
 

COPIES of the complete Notice and other material that the Council may consider in relation to the 
temporary use permit may be viewed online at: www.langford.ca or made available upon request by 
emailing to planning@langford.ca or in writing to Langford City Hall, 2nd Floor, 877 Goldstream Avenue, 
Langford, BC, V9B 2X8 for the duration of the pandemic emergency.  Please contact Kory Elliott in the 
Planning Department at 250-478-7882 or by email at kelliott@langford.ca  with any questions on this 
temporary use permit. 
 
 
 
 
 
Braden Hutchins 
Director of Corporate Services  
 
 

Page 15 of 134Page 15 of 134

http://www.langford.ca/
http://www.langford.ca/
mailto:planning@langford.ca
mailto:kelliott@langford.ca


 

Page 16 of 134Page 16 of 134



 

 
 

2nd  Floor · 877 Goldstream Avenue · Langford, BC Canada · V9B 2X8 
 T · 250-478-7882 F · 250-478-7864 

 
 

 

Staff Report 

to 

Council 
 

Date:   September 8, 2020 

Department:  Administration 

Subject:   Disposition of the North Langford Recreation Centre  

  

 
Background 
 
In early 2020, the City issued a request for expression of interest for the potential sale of the North 
Langford Recreation Centre. Two responses were received at the end of February, 2020.  
 
Commentary 
 
From March 2020 to now, City staff have been in detailed negotiations with the leading proponent 
regarding the potential terms of a purchase and sale agreement. Staff have completed this negotiation 
and key terms of the purchase and sale agreement, in the order they are included in the agreement, are 
as follows: 
 

 Purchaser: Bear Mountain Adventures 

 Base Purchase Price: $3,575,000 (includes land, facility and all chattels) 

 Deposit: $350,000 

 Closing Date: November 30, 2020 

 Parking:  
o Prior to completion, the City will issue any necessary parking variances 
o Within one year of completion, the City will secure an easement on the Westin Hotel 

property or will ensure all parking is accessible from the North Langford Recreation Centre 
property (currently, the lower parking of the facility lot does not have legal access) 

 Maintenance: the City will cover basic maintenance (e.g. janitorial/landscaping) up to $20,000 
until the completion date, as well as up to $30,000 for significant repairs that are not covered by 
insurance or warranty 

 Buyer Condition Precedent: The Buyer will have a 45-day due diligence period following the 
execution of the agreement by both parties 

 Restricted Uses:  

Page 17 of 134Page 17 of 134



o The use of the property will primarily be restricted to recreation related activities for 25
years (after that, this restriction falls away)

o Retail uses in the original building may be expanded by 12.5% from the current amount
of retail use, provided the City is compensated for this change in use as demonstrated by
an appraisal

o Any modifications to the original building will not result in a loss of greater than 12.5% of
the interior portion of the build ordinarily accessible to the public

o The hours of the recreation centre will be a minimum of 80 hours a week between the
hours of 6 am – 10 pm (with the exception of retail operations)

o If the recreation centre is closed for modifications for longer than 24 months within any
twelve-and-a-half-year period, then the term of the covenant securing recreation use and
the option to purchase will be automatically extended by the duration of the closure

o Residents of the City of Langford will be entitled to a ten percent (10%) discount on drop-
in rates and monthly passes

o The owner will provide a variety of drop in ticket purchase options to all persons for entry
to the facility

o The building addition may be used for uses associated with recreation (e.g. offices,
personal services or retail), or may be used as a real estate sales office

 Buyer improvements:
o the Buyer will construct, within 24 months, an expansion to the Recreation Centre

consisting of a second swimming pool of an area at least 210 square metres at the surface,
and a seating expansion (the “Expansion”)

o The Buyer will also construct a tot aquatic facility, somewhere in the future Bear
Mountain Village, similar to the tot aquatic facility at Uptown Mall, within 55 months

o If these improvements are not constructed within the required timelines, the ultimate
purchase price of the property would increase to up to $4,000,000.

 City Security on Uses and Financial Penalties
o If the Buyer does not meet its above obligations with respect to uses or financial

contributions in lieu of improvements, for the first five years, the City can purchase the
property back at 75% the purchase price plus seventy-five percent (75%) of the then fair
market value of any additional lands added to the property to accommodate the
improvements and all buildings and improvements erected

o After the first five years, if the buyer does not meet its above obligations with respect to
uses, the City can purchase the property for seventy-five percent (75%) of the then fair
market value of the improved recreation centre

o Note that the above buy-back provisions are only available to the City if the Buyer defaults
and does not cure the default within either 15 or 30 days (depending on the default) or
there are more than two defaults within 12 months

Financial Implications 

The City will receive a minimum of $3,575,000 from the sale, plus an improvement to recreation amenities 
or additional financial contributions if the recreation improvements are not constructed within the 
required timelines.  

Council should note that the City has received an independent appraisal of the North Langford Recreation 
Centre, which valued the property at $4,000,000. Via the outlined terms of the agreement, the City will 

Page 18 of 134Page 18 of 134



receive this amount for the community in-kind if the additional recreation amenities are built or will 
receive this amount in cash if the recreation improvements are not built.  

Legal Implications 

The required legal notices of disposition, as per s. 26 of the Community Charter, have been placed in the 
paper for two consecutive weeks.  

Council may also wish to note that the attached documents have been prepared with extensive 
consultation with the City’s lawyers.  

Options 

1. That Council approve the disposition of the North Langford Recreation Centre located at 1997
Country Club Way as per the attached and executed purchase and sale agreement;

OR

2. That Council directs staff not to dispose of the North Langford Recreation Centre.

Respectfully submitted, 

Submitted by: Braden Hutchins, Director of Corporate Services 

Concurrence: Marie Watmough, Manager of Legislative Services 

Concurrence: Matthew Baldwin, MCIP, RPP Director of Planning 

Concurrence: Chris Aubrey, Fire Chief 

Concurrence: Donna Petrie, Manager of Economic Development and Events 

Concurrence: Darren Kiedyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

Concurrence: George Henshall, Deputy Director of Engineering 

:BH 

Page 19 of 134Page 19 of 134



Page 20 of 134Page 20 of 134



Page 21 of 134Page 21 of 134



Page 22 of 134Page 22 of 134



Page 23 of 134Page 23 of 134



Page 24 of 134Page 24 of 134



Page 25 of 134Page 25 of 134



Page 26 of 134Page 26 of 134



Page 27 of 134Page 27 of 134



Page 28 of 134Page 28 of 134



Page 29 of 134Page 29 of 134



Page 30 of 134Page 30 of 134



Page 31 of 134Page 31 of 134



Page 32 of 134Page 32 of 134



Page 33 of 134Page 33 of 134



Page 34 of 134Page 34 of 134



Page 35 of 134Page 35 of 134



Page 36 of 134Page 36 of 134



Page 37 of 134Page 37 of 134



Page 38 of 134Page 38 of 134



Page 39 of 134Page 39 of 134



Page 40 of 134Page 40 of 134



Page 41 of 134Page 41 of 134



Page 42 of 134Page 42 of 134



Page 43 of 134Page 43 of 134



Page 44 of 134Page 44 of 134



Page 45 of 134Page 45 of 134



Page 46 of 134Page 46 of 134



Page 47 of 134Page 47 of 134



Page 48 of 134Page 48 of 134



Page 49 of 134Page 49 of 134



Page 50 of 134Page 50 of 134



Page 51 of 134Page 51 of 134



Page 52 of 134Page 52 of 134



Page 53 of 134Page 53 of 134



Page 54 of 134Page 54 of 134



Page 55 of 134Page 55 of 134



Page 56 of 134Page 56 of 134



Page 57 of 134Page 57 of 134



Page 58 of 134Page 58 of 134



Page 59 of 134Page 59 of 134



Page 60 of 134Page 60 of 134



Page 61 of 134Page 61 of 134



Page 62 of 134Page 62 of 134



Page 63 of 134Page 63 of 134



Page 64 of 134Page 64 of 134



Page 65 of 134Page 65 of 134



Page 66 of 134Page 66 of 134



Page 67 of 134Page 67 of 134



Page 68 of 134Page 68 of 134



Page 69 of 134Page 69 of 134



Page 70 of 134Page 70 of 134



Page 71 of 134Page 71 of 134



Page 72 of 134Page 72 of 134



Page 73 of 134Page 73 of 134



Page 74 of 134Page 74 of 134



Page 75 of 134Page 75 of 134



Page 76 of 134Page 76 of 134



Page 77 of 134Page 77 of 134



Page 78 of 134Page 78 of 134



Page 79 of 134Page 79 of 134



Page 80 of 134Page 80 of 134



Page 81 of 134Page 81 of 134



Page 82 of 134Page 82 of 134



Page 83 of 134Page 83 of 134



Page 84 of 134Page 84 of 134



Page 85 of 134Page 85 of 134



Page 86 of 134Page 86 of 134



Page 87 of 134Page 87 of 134



Page 88 of 134Page 88 of 134



Page 89 of 134Page 89 of 134



Page 90 of 134Page 90 of 134



Page 91 of 134Page 91 of 134



Page 92 of 134Page 92 of 134



Page 93 of 134Page 93 of 134



Page 94 of 134Page 94 of 134



Page 95 of 134Page 95 of 134



Page 96 of 134Page 96 of 134



Page 97 of 134Page 97 of 134



Page 98 of 134Page 98 of 134



Page 99 of 134Page 99 of 134



Page 100 of 134Page 100 of 134



Page 101 of 134Page 101 of 134



Page 102 of 134Page 102 of 134



Page 103 of 134Page 103 of 134



Page 104 of 134Page 104 of 134



Page 105 of 134Page 105 of 134



Page 106 of 134Page 106 of 134



Page 107 of 134Page 107 of 134



Page 108 of 134Page 108 of 134



Page 109 of 134Page 109 of 134



Page 110 of 134Page 110 of 134



Page 111 of 134Page 111 of 134



 

 
 

2nd  Floor · 877 Goldstream Avenue · Langford, BC Canada · V9B 2X8 
 T · 250-478-7882 F · 250-478-7864 

 
 

 

Staff Report 

to 

Council 
 

Date:   September 8, 2020 

Department:  Engineering 

Subject:   Approval to Award Design of Millstream Road Roundabout 
  

  
 
Background 
 
The City’s long-term plans include construction of a roundabout on Millstream Road at Bear Mountain 
Parkway.  Recent traffic counts in the area indicate that this corridor would benefit from construction of 
a roundabout here sooner rather than later. 
 
The purpose of this report is to gain Council approval to award the detailed design and estimating for this 
roundabout and potential look to tender it for construction in 2021. 
 
Commentary 
 
Millstream Road northbound and southbound service a light industrial area located north of Bear 
Mountain Parkway that is partially in Langford and partially in the Highlands. Millstream Road is the 
primary corridor to and from this area and therefore the traffic mix here consists of heavier truck traffic 
as well as residential traffic from the greater Bear Mountain area and the Highlands. 
 
Recent traffic counts in the area indicate that this corridor would benefit from construction of a 
roundabout here sooner rather than later. 
 
Initially a single lane roundabout can be constructed to accommodate existing traffic. A dual lane 
roundabout, such as the one located at West Shore Parkway and Langford Parkway, would be required in 
the future if for example the Western Speedway property were to develop and/or the population keeps 
increasing in this area. 
 
Staff are seeking to undertake a detailed design for both the interim and ultimate configuration of the 
roundabout at this location. One reason for doing both an interim and ultimate design is to minimize any 

Page 112 of 134Page 112 of 134



Approval to Award Design of Millstream Road Roundabout 
Page 2 of 3 

 
“throw away” work when the ultimate roundabout gets constructed. Additionally, staff wish to confirm if 
land is needed to accommodate either the interim or the ultimate construction. 
 
Staff obtained an estimate from McElhanney (consulting firm). McElhanney are the City’s roundabout 
consultant on the Peatt at Brock roundabout where the interim construction for this roundabout is 
underway right now. In that case McElhanney did both an interim and ultimate design. The design 
considered the most recent safety recommendations from ICBC resulting in a contributing financial grant 
from ICBC for the construction of the Peatt at Brock roundabout. Staff anticipate applying for, and being 
successful for an ICBC grant to contribute toward the cost to construct the Millstream roundabout. This is 
normally done by completing an ICBC Road Safety Audit, having ICBC staff review the designs and provide 
any feedback as necessary. 
 
McElhanney staff have successfully completed other large roundabouts on the lower island, one example 
being the double roundabout in the City of Duncan. In addition, the McElhanney team routinely facilitates 
ICBC roundabout workshops across BC, including one in Victoria that many of our Langford staff attended 
last year. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The cost to undertake data collection for both the interim and ultimate design, complete the interim and 
ultimate design and prepare tender documents is estimated at $86,668 plus GST. Staff are proposing to 
fund this from the City’s Road DCC program budget. There are sufficient funds in this budget to proceed 
now (in 2020) with this design work. This would best enable staff to tender this job in early January for 
consideration to construct in 2021 with the City’s 2021 budget discussions. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None noted. 
 
  

Page 113 of 134Page 113 of 134



Approval to Award Design of Millstream Road Roundabout 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Options 
 
That Council: 

1. Award the Consulting Engineering Services for the design of the Millstream Road at Bear 
Mountain Parkway roundabout to McElhanney for the estimated cost of $86,668 plus GST and 
fund this from the City’s Road Development Cost Charge program; 
 
OR 
 

2. Not award this contract at this time. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Submitted by: Michelle Mahovlich, P.Eng, P.Geo, Director of Engineering & Public Works 
Concurrence: George Henshall, AsCT., Deputy Director of Engineering & Public Works 
Concurrence: Marie Watmough, Manager of Legislative Services 
Concurrence: Matthew Baldwin, MCIP, RPP Director of Planning 
Concurrence: Chris Aubrey, Fire Chief 
Concurrence: Lorne Fletcher, Manager of Community Safety and Municipal Enforcement 
Concurrence: Cory Manton, Manager of Parks and Recreation  
Concurrence: Michael Dillabaugh, CPA, CA, Director of Finance 
Concurrence: Braden Hutchins, Director of Corporate Services 
Concurrence: Darren Kiedyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
:mm 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114 of 134Page 114 of 134



                                           Goldstream Farmers Market Society   
 
 
   Mayor and council of The City of Langford.  
 
The Goldstream Farmers Market is asking for an extension of our Contract to operate a 
market in the 
Veterans Park every Saturday  until the end of November 2020 Weather permitting. We 
would follow 
The same rules and guidelines in our present contract and all Covid 19 regulations set 
in place. 
We make this request for our customers and Vendors because most of the fall and 
winter craft fairs are not on this year because of Covid 19 . We see this as a way for our 
vendors to showcase their products in the lead up to Christmas and support our local 
community. 
 
                                                Tony Obersteller President GFMS 

Page 115 of 134Page 115 of 134



 

 
 

2nd  Floor · 877 Goldstream Avenue · Langford, BC Canada · V9B 2X8 
 T · 250-478-7882 F · 250-478-7864 

 
 

Staff Report 
to 

Council 
 
 
Date:   September 8, 2020 

Department:  Planning 

Application No.: Z19-0026 

Subject: Bylaw No. 1884- Application to Rezone 2716 and 2720 Strathmore Road from 
R2 (One and Two Family Residential) Zone to RM7A (Medium Density 
Apartment A) Zone and to add the subject property to Schedule A1 of the 
Zoning Bylaw No. 300, to allow for the development of an apartment building 
consisting of approximately 32 units.  

 

At their Regular Meeting of 3 February 2020, Council passed the following resolution with respect to the 
properties at 2716 and 2720 Strathmore Road: 
 

1. Direct Staff to prepare a bylaw to rezone the properties at 2716 and 2720 Strathmore Road from 

the R2, One and Two Family Residential, Zone to the RM7A, Medium – Density Apartment A, Zone 

and to add the subject properties to Schedule A1, of Zoning Bylaw No.300. subject to the following 

terms and conditions: 

a. That the applicant provides, as a bonus for increased density, the following contributions, per 
unit, prior to the issuance of a building permit to develop the property: 

 

i. $750 per unit towards the General Amenity Reserve Fund;  
 

ii. $2850 per unit towards the Affordable Housing Fund;  
 

iii. And subject to a 50% reduction to the total amount of contribution fees for units on the 
5th and 6th storey, in accordance with the Affordable Housing and Amenity Contribution 
Policy.  

  

Page 116 of 134Page 116 of 134



Subject: Bylaw No. 1884 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
b. That the applicant provides, prior to Public Hearing, the following:  

 

i. A technical memo from an engineer that verifies storm water can be adequately 
managed on-site for the proposed developments, to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Engineering; COMPLETED 
 

ii. A frontage drawing to the satisfaction of the Director of Engineering to confirm 
whether road dedication is required to complete all required frontage improvements, 
including boulevard landscaping, sidewalks, road edge parking and street lighting (if 
applicable); COMPLETED 

 

c. That the applicant registers, prior to Bylaw Adoption, if necessary, the road frontage to 
accommodate required frontage improvements to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Engineering; NOT REQUIRED 

 

d. That the applicant provides, prior to Bylaw Adoption, a Section 219 covenant, registered 
in priority of all other charges on title, that agrees to the following:  

 

i. That the developer agrees to install, or bond for, all required frontage improvements 
to Bylaw No. 1000 standards, including the installation of road edge parking, 
sidewalks, boulevard landscaping and possibly streetlights, to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Engineering, prior to issuance of a building permit; 

ii. That the developer will connect and be responsible for any upgrades and/or 
installation of services and utilities required to support the proposed development; 

iii. That all storm water management plan(s) be provided prior to issuance of a building 
permit and implemented, as per Bylaw 1000, all to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Engineering;  

iv. That a construction parking and traffic management plan, prepared to the satisfaction 
of the Director of Engineering, be provided prior to the issuance of a building permit; 

v. That the required parking stalls for this development are allocated for each residential 
unit and visitors, as required by Zoning Bylaw No. 300, and that parking is not offered 
separately from individual residential and visitor units for compensation; 

vi. That the developer submits the Fire Underwriters Survey (FUS) calculations prior to 
the issuance of a development permit to develop the property, and acknowledges that 
these calculations may determine different setbacks than what is prescribed in the 
zone or from what has been granted through variances; 

vii. That the developer agrees to install any infrastructure, including fire hydrants, 
required to fight an urban fire, as prescribed in Bylaw No. 1000.  

 

Page 117 of 134Page 117 of 134



Subject: Bylaw No. 
1884 Page 3 of 3 

e. That Council authorize the Director of Planning to authorize the following variances within

a Development Permit that addresses the form and character of the development:

a. A variance to reduce the required building setback to a rear property line from 7.5m
to 3m;

b. A variance to reduce the required building setback from a front lot line from 7.5m to
0.48m subject to the following:

i. That the applicant registers a Section 219 Covenant on the property
acknowledging that they will not require an encroachment agreement onto City
property as a result of receiving a variance from the required building setback to
the front property line.

COMMENTS 

The applicant has registered a Sec. 219 covenant against the title of the subject property that agrees to 
items 1. d. i.-v.  - in Council’s resolution of February 3rd, 2020.  

Bylaw No.1884 was signed by the Minister of Transportation on March 19, 2020. 

OPTIONS 

That Council: 

1. Adopt Bylaw No. 1884;

2. Take no action at this time with respect to Bylaw No. 1884;

Respectfully Submitted, 

Submitted by: Lauren Mattiussi, MCIP, RPP Planner 2 

Concurrence: Matthew Baldwin, MCIP, RPP Director of Planning 

Concurrence: Marie Watmough, Manager of Legislative Services 

Concurrence: Chris Aubrey, Fire Chief 

Concurrence: Lorne Fletcher, Manager of Community Safety and Municipal Enforcement 

Concurrence: Cory Manton, Manager of Parks and Recreation 

Concurrence: Michelle Mahovlich, P.Eng, P.Geo, Director of Engineering 

Concurrence: Audrey Kryklywyj-Shortreid, Deputy Director of Finance 

Concurrence: Braden Hutchins, Director of Corporate Services 

Concurrence: Darren Kiedyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

:lhm 

Page 118 of 134Page 118 of 134



CITY OF LANGFORD 
BYLAW NO.  1884 

A BYLAW TO AMEND BYLAW NO. 300, 
“LANGFORD ZONING BYLAW, 1999" 

The Council of the City of Langford, in open meeting assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 

A. Langford Zoning Bylaw No. 300, 1999 is amended as follows:

1. By deleting the maps shown in Schedule A1 and replacing them with the maps attached to this
Bylaw as Appendix A;

2. By deleting from the R2 (One- and Two-Family Residential) Zone and adding to RM7A (Medium

Density Apartment A) Zone the property legally described as Lots 5 and 6, Section 5,
Esquimalt District, Plan 16167, PID Nos. 002-558-751 and 004-014-367 (2716 and 2720

Strathmore Road) and in the portions as shown shaded on Plan No. 1 attached to and forming
part of this Bylaw.

3. By adding the following to Table 1 of Schedule AD:

Zone 
Bylaw 

No. 
Legal Description Amenity Contributions 

RM7A 1884 Lots 5 and 6, Section 5, 

Esquimalt District, Plan 5, PID 

Nos. 002-558-751 and 004-014-

367 (2716 and 2720 

Strathmore Road) 

a) $750 per new unit created on the
1st to 4th storeys of the building
towards the Affordable Housing
Reserve Fund; and

b) $375 per new unit created on the
5th and 6th storeys of the building
towards the Affordable Housing
Reserve Fund; and

c) $2,850 per new unit created on
the 1st to 4th storeys of the
building towards the General
Amenity Reserve Fund; and

d) $1,425 per new unit created on
the 5th and 6th storeys of the
building towards the General
Amenity Reserve Fund; and

Page 119 of 134Page 119 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1884 
 Page 2 of 4 

 
B. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 582, (2716 

and 2720 Strathmore Road), Bylaw 1884, 2020". 
 
 
READ A FIRST TIME this 18th day of February, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held this 16th day of March, 2020. 
 
READ A SECOND TIME this 16th day of March, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this 16th day of March, 2020. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MINISTRY OF TRANSPORTATION THIS 19th DAY OF March, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this of, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
MAYOR (Certified Correct) 

CORPORATE OFFICER 

Page 120 of 134Page 120 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1884 
 Page 3 of 4 

 
 

Appendix A 
 

Page 121 of 134Page 121 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1884 
 Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 122 of 134Page 122 of 134



  

 

 CITY OF LANGFORD 
 BYLAW NO. 1904 
 

A BYLAW TO AMEND BYLAW NO. 300,  
“LANGFORD ZONING BYLAW, 1999" 

  
 
The Council of the City of Langford, in open meeting assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 
 
A. Langford Zoning Bylaw No. 300, 1999 is amended as follows: 

 
1. By adding the following to Section 1.01 

 
“Active building frontage is a building façade that incorporates commercial and/or individually 
accessed residential units at grade along the frontage. Private amenity space and residential 
lobbies may also be included provided they do not dominate the building façade and are designed 
in accordance with the City Centre Design Guidelines.  For the purpose of calculating minimum 
active building frontage requirements, that portion of the frontage required for minimum 
setbacks specified in Part 6 of this Bylaw or for a driveway up to 6 m in width may be excluded” 
 
“Common outdoor amenity space is an outdoor space accessible to all residents within an 
apartment or apartment, senior citizens building that is constructed with surface materials that 
include sod, pavers, decking, sport court paving or similar materials that allow the space to be 
used for active or passive recreational use by the residents of the building;” 
 

2. By adding the following to Section 3.21.01 as (5):  
 
“(5) All portions of a lot that are not covered by a building or structure or used for off street 
parking must be landscaped”  

 
3. By adding the following as Section 6.57 to the Zoning Bylaw: 

 
 
“Section 6. 57 - City Centre Zone (CC1) Zone 
The intent of the City Centre Zone is to allow for high-density development that must include a residential 
component as the primary use within a building. 
 
6.57.01 Permitted Uses 
 

The following uses and no others are permitted in the CC1 Zone; 
 

(1) Accessory uses, buildings, and/or structures; 
 
(2) Apartment; 
 
(3) Apartment, senior citizens; 
 
(4) Assisted living;  

 
(5) Bakery; 

Page 123 of 134Page 123 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1904 
 Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 
(6) Catering; 

 
(7) Charitable facility; 
 
(8) Cultural facility; 

 
(9) Fitness centre; 
 
(10) Group daycare, in accordance with Section 3.26.02; 
 
(11) Home occupation in accordance with Section 3.09; 
 
(12) Hotel; 
 
(13) Library; 
 
(14) Licensed premises; 
 
(15) Liquor store; 
 
(16) Medical Clinics; 
 
(17) Office; 

 
(18) Personal service establishment; 
 
(19) Pet daycare; 
 
(20) Pet grooming; 
 
(21) Place of worship;  

 
(22) Public assembly and entertainment uses; 
 
(23) Preschool; 
 
(24)      Restaurant;  

 
(25) Retail store;  

 
(26) Townhouses; 

 
(27) Training and education facility;  

 
(28) Veterinary practice; 
 

Page 124 of 134Page 124 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1904 
 Page 3 of 4 

 

 

(29) Uses permitted by Section 3.01 of this Bylaw; 
 

6.57.02 Subdivision Lot Requirements 
 

(1) No lot having a lot area less than 2,000 m2 (0.49 ac) may be created by subdivision in the 
CC1 Zone; 

 
6.57.03  Regulations for Use  

 
(1) Residential units on the ground floor must have individual at grade access; 
 
(2) Residential uses must not share an entrance, vestibule or hallway with a non- 

residential use; 
 
(3) No lot with a lot area less than 1,400 m2 (0.35 ac) or a frontage less than 37 m (121 ft) 

may be used for any use other than a Townhouse use;  
 
6.57.04 Regulations for Townhouse Use 
 

(1) A Townhouse use is subject to the regulations of the RT1 Zone and not the regulations 
of this Zone. 

 
6.57.05  Density of Development 
 

(1) Except as provided in article 6.57.05(2) the floor area ratio may not exceed 0.3;  
 
(2) Despite article 6.57.05(1), on land whose legal description is set out in Table 1 of 

Schedule AD, the floor area ratio may be increased to 5.0 if the owner of the land 
proposed to be developed:  

 
(a) Pays to the City the amount specified in Column 4 of Table 1 of Schedule AD, prior 

to the issuance of a building permit to construct on the site; and 
 
(b) Provides at least 100 m2 (1076 ft2) or 5% of the lot area, whichever is greater, as 

common outdoor amenity space; and 
 

(c) Incorporates a minimum active building frontage of 80%. 
 

6.57.06  Setbacks 
 

(1) No portion of a building or structure 2 storeys or less in height may be located:  
 

(a) Within 2 m (6.6 ft) of any front or exterior side lot line; 
 
(b) Within 3 m (9.8 ft) of any interior side or rear lot line;  

 
(2) No portion of a building or structure 3 storeys or greater in height may be located:  

Page 125 of 134Page 125 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1904 
 Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 
(a) Within 4 m (13 ft) of an exterior or front lot line; 

 
(b) Within 3 m (9.8 ft) of any interior side or rear lot line;  

 
(c) Despite article 6.57.06 (2)(a), where a building or structure greater than 6 storeys 

in height has a building façade with a horizontal plane greater than 20 m (65.6 ft), 
a minimum 30% of the façade must be setback an additional 1 m (3.3 ft) from the 
established setback; 

 
6.57.08  Parking 
 

In addition to the regulations contained in Part 4 of this Bylaw, the following regulations apply 
to parking and loading in the CC1 Zone:  

 
(1) No unenclosed surface parking spaces may be located within 3 m (9.8 ft) of a lot line 

abutting a highway; 
 

(2) Parking stalls located adjacent to a highway must be screened by a building containing 
an active use, which may include commercial or residential units; 
 

(3) Surface parking stalls may be located adjacent to an interior side or rear lot line when 
screened by a fence no less than 1.8 m (6 ft) in height and by a landscaping strip no less 
than 3 m (9.8 ft) in width;” 

 
B. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 589, 

Omnibus No. 51 – City Centre 1 Zones, Bylaw No. 1904, 2020". 
 

 
READ A FIRST TIME this 20th day of July, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held this 17th day of August, 2020. 
 
READ A SECOND TIME this 17th day of August, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this 17th day of August, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this      day of             , 2020. 
 
 
 
    
MAYOR                   (Certified Correct) 

CORPORATE OFFICER 
 

Page 126 of 134Page 126 of 134



  

CITY OF LANGFORD 
  BYLAW NO. 1920 

 
A BYLAW TO AMEND BYLAW NO. 300,  

“LANGFORD ZONING BYLAW, 1999" 
  
 
The Council of the City of Langford, in open meeting assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 
 
A. Langford Zoning Bylaw No. 300, 1999 is amended as follows: 
 

1. By adding the phrase “transportation corridor” immediately after “an electrical substation” in 
Section 3.22.03(1); 
 

2. By adding the following as Section 3.22.05: 

 
“The Approving Officer may approve a boundary adjustment subdivision which creates lots with 
lot areas less than the requirements in this Bylaw if:  
 
(1) the subject lots are adjoining; 
(2) no additional lots are created; 
(3) where the proposed lots are under 6,000 m2 (1.5 ac) in area, the boundary adjustment does 

not result in the reduction of any lot by more than 20% of its original size; and 
(4) the requirements of this Bylaw respecting siting of buildings and structures and minimum lot 

width are complied with.” 
 

3. By deleting Section 6.44B.01(3); 
 

4. By deleting Section 6.109.03(1), (2) and (3) and replacing them with the following: 
 
“(1) There may not be more than 60 Single Family Equivalent (SFE) dwelling units in the CD20 
Zone.  The maximum SFE in each “Area” identified on the CD20 Zone Map attached as Schedule 
“AG” are as follows: 

(a) Area 1 – 36.68 SFE; 
(b) Area 2 – 21.0 SFE; and 
(c) Areas 3 and 4 – 2.32 SFE. 

 
(2) Despite Article 6.109.03(1)(a), there may be more than 36.68 SFE in Area 1 of the CD20 Zone 
if the owner of the land proposed to be built upon: 

(a) Pays to the City $90,000 towards the General Amenity Reserve Fund, prior to 
subdivision approval for one-family dwellings and prior to the issuance of a Building 
Permit for townhouses, and two-family dwellings; and 

(b) Pays to the City the amount specified in Table 1 below, prior to subdivision approval 
for one-family dwellings and prior to the issuance of a Building Permit for 
townhouses, and two-family dwellings; 

 
(3) Despite Article 6.109.03(1)(b), there may be more than 21.0 SFE in Area 2 of the CD20 Zone if 
the owner of the land proposed to be built upon: 

(a) Pays to the City $60,000 towards the General Amenity Reserve Fund, prior to 
subdivision approval for one-family dwellings and prior to the issuance of a Building 
Permit for townhouses, two-family dwellings and apartments; and 

Page 127 of 134Page 127 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1920 
 Page 2 of 3 

 
(b) Pays to the City the amount specified in Table 1 below, prior to subdivision approval 

for one-family dwellings and prior to the issuance of a Building Permit for 
townhouses, two-family dwellings and apartments;  

Table 1 – Amenity Contributions 

a) $5,400 per one-family lot greater than or equal to 
550.0 m2 (5,920.0 ft2) towards the General Amenity 
Reserve Fund; 

b) $3,564 per one-family lot less than 550.0 m2 (5,920.0 
ft2) towards the General Amenity Reserve Fund; 

c) $3,294 per townhouse, two-family dwelling or 
apartment dwelling unit towards the General 
Amenity Reserve Fund; 

d) $900 per one-family lot greater than or equal to 550.0 
m2 (5,920.0 ft2) towards the Affordable Housing 
Reserve Fund; 

e) $594 per one-family lot less than 550.0 m2 (5,920.0 
ft2) towards the Affordable Housing Reserve Fund; 
and 

f) $549 per townhouse, two-family dwelling or 
apartment dwelling unit towards the Affordable 
Housing Reserve Fund. 

” 
5. By deleting Schedule “E” and replacing it with Schedule “A” of this Bylaw; 

 
B. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Langford Zoning Bylaw, Amendment No. 597, (Omnibus 

No. 53–Various Amendments), Bylaw No. 1920, 2020". 
 
READ A FIRST TIME this 20th day of July, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held this 17th day of August, 2020. 
 
READ A SECOND TIME this 17th day of August, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this 17th day of August, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of     , 2020. 
 
 
 
 
    
MAYOR                   (Certified Correct) 

CORPORATE OFFICER 
 
 
 

Page 128 of 134Page 128 of 134



 Bylaw No. 1920 
 Page 3 of 3 

 
Schedule “A” 

 

 

Page 129 of 134Page 129 of 134



 

 
 

2nd  Floor · 877 Goldstream Avenue · Langford, BC Canada · V9B 2X8 
 T · 250-478-7882 F · 250-478-7864 

 
 

 
Staff Report 

to 
Council 

 
 
Date:   September 8, 2020 

Department:  Legislative Services 

Subject: Bylaw No. 1925 "CITY OF LANGFORD FREEDOM OF INFORMATION BYLAW NO. 
1925, 2020" 

 

Background 
On December 12, 1994, Council adopted the “District of Langford Freedom of Information Bylaw No. 80, 
1994”. 
 
Under this Bylaw, the “Head”, for purposes of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
RSBC 1996, chapter 165 (the “Act”) are the Clerk-Administrator, the Treasurer-Collector, and the Director 
of Engineering and Development Services. As well, all of the duties of the Head are set out in the bylaw 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act which existed at that time. 
 
Commentary 
 
Staff recommends that the Corporate Officer and the Manager of Legislative Services be appointed “Head 
of Privacy”. Currently, the Corporate Officer and the Manager of Legislative Services deal with matters 
related to the Act, this change will align the Bylaw with current practices. 
 
In addition, the Bylaw has been simplified to reflect changes to the Act.  
 
The Fee Schedule in the Regulation has been incorporated into the Bylaw by reference rather than being 
attached as an appendix. The effect of this change is that when the Province changes the Fee Schedule 
those changes are effective without the City having to make changes to the Bylaw. 
 
Upon adoption of this Bylaw, Bylaw 80, cited above, will be repealed. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications 

Page 130 of 134Page 130 of 134



Subject: 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
This change will modernize the Bylaw and will appoint those persons as Head of Privacy who oversee the 
requests currently.  
 
Options: 
  

1. That Council give 1st, 2nd and 3rd readings to the "CITY OF LANGFORD FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION BYLAW NO. 1925, 2020"; or 
 

2. That Council do nothing at this time with respect to the "CITY OF LANGFORD FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION BYLAW NO. 1925, 2020". 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Submitted by: Marie Watmough 

Concurrence: Matthew Baldwin, MCIP, RPP Director of Planning 

Concurrence: Chris Aubrey, Fire Chief 

Concurrence: Lorne Fletcher, Manager of Community Safety and Municipal Enforcement 

Concurrence: Cory Manton, Manager of Parks and Recreation 

Concurrence: George Henshall, Deputy Director of Engineering 

Concurrence: Donna Petrie, Manager of Business Development and Events 

Concurrence: Braden Hutchins, Director of Corporate Services 

Concurrence: Darren Kiedyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

 

:mw 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131 of 134Page 131 of 134



 Page 1 

 

 Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Bylaw 

  
 
 
 CITY OF LANGFORD 
 
 "CITY OF LANGFORD FREEDOM OF INFORMATION BYLAW NO. 1925, 2020"  
 
A BYLAW FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY 

ACT.  
 
WHEREAS, the City enacted the "District of Langford Freedom of Information Bylaw No. 80, 1994" (the “1994 
Bylaw”); 

 
WHEREAS the City wishes to repeal and replace the 1994 Bylaw with a new Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Bylaw; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Langford, in open meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1.0 CITATION: 
 

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "City of Langford Freedom of Information Bylaw 
No. 1925, 2020. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION: 
 

2.1 The definitions contained in Schedule 1 of the Act shall apply to this bylaw except where the 
context requires otherwise. 

 
2.2 In this bylaw: 

 
"Act" means the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSBC 1996, chapter 165 
as amended or replaced. 

 
"Commercial Applicant" means a person who makes a request for access to a record to obtain 
information for the use in connection with a trade, business, profession or other venture for 
profit. 

 
"Council” means the Council of the City of Langford. 

 
"Head of Privacy” means the person or group of persons designated as the Head of the 
municipality pursuant to Section 3 of this Bylaw. 

 
"City" means the City of Langford. 

 
"Request" means a request under Section 5 of the Act. 

 
 

Page 132 of 134Page 132 of 134



 Page 2 

 

 Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Bylaw 

  
 
 
3.0 ADMINISTRATION: 
 

3.1 Pursuant to section 77 of the Act, Council appoints the persons occupying the following 
positions to be the Head of Privacy under the Act: 

 
a) Director of Corporate Services; and 
b) Manager of Legislative Services. 
 

3.2 The Head of Privacy may delegate to any person any duty, power or function of the Head of 
Privacy provided that the delegation: 

 
  a) is in writing, 
  b) is subject to such restrictions or conditions as the Head of Privacy may deem 

appropriate; 
  c)  does not include the authority to delegate under Section 66 of the Act; 
  d) is otherwise in compliance with the Act. 
 
3.3 The Head of Privacy is also the head of privacy for all boards, committees, commissions, panels, 

agencies, or corporations created or owned by the City. 
 
4.0 FEES: 
 

4.1 An applicant making a request may be subject to fees for the purpose of: 
 
 a) locating, retrieving and producing the record; 
 b) preparing the record for disclosure; 
 c) shipping and handling the record; and 

d) providing a copy of the record. 
 
The charge for fees under this Bylaw shall be in accordance with the Schedule of Maximum Fees 
in the British Columbia Regulation 155/2012, as amended from time to time. 

 
4.2 Where an applicant requests the City waive the fees in 4.1, the applicant must submit a written 

request to the City and must provide sufficient detail for the City to determine whether or not to 
waive the fees. Factors to be considered may include but are not limited to: 

  
a) Volume of materials sought; and 
b) Severe financial hardship and resulting impact on the applicant. 

 
5.0 REPEALS 
 
 5.1 This Bylaw repeals and replaces "District of Langford Freedom of Information Bylaw No. 80, 

1994". 
 

Page 133 of 134Page 133 of 134



 Page 3 

 

 Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Bylaw 

  
 
 
6.0 SEVERABILITY 
 
 6.1 If any portion of this bylaw is found to be invalid, it shall be severed from the bylaw and the 

remaining provisions shall not be affected but shall remain in full force and effect as if the bylaw 
had been enacted without the invalid portion. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME this      day of  ______________, 2020. 
 
READ A SECOND TIME this        day of ______________, 2020 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this       day of    ______________, 2020. 
 
RECONSIDERED, FINALLY PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ______________, 2020 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED CORRECT 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                      

MAYOR     (Corporate Officer) 
 
 
 

Page 134 of 134Page 134 of 134


	20200908 - Council Agenda INDEX.pdf
	20200817 - Council Minutes.pdf
	Notice of Intent - TUP20-0003 - 890 Goldstream Ave.pdf
	20200908 - Disposition of the North Langford Recreation Centre.pdf
	Resolution

	Approval to Award Design of Millstream Road Roundabout.pdf
	Resolution
	Legal Implications

	Farmers Market Letter.pdf
	Bylaw 1884 2716 and 2720 Strathmore Adoption with Report.pdf
	Resolution

	Bylaw 1904 Adoption No Report.pdf
	Bylaw 1920 Omnibus Rezoning Adoption No Report.pdf
	Bylaw 1925 Freedom of Information 1st 2nd and 3rd With Report.pdf
	Resolution




